

# My Pet Hotel







# Table of contents:

1.0 Introduction	3
2.0 Installation	3
System Requirements	4
3.0 Controls and Shortcut keys	5
4.0 Main Menu	5
5.0 The Game	6
The Animal Types	7
The Needs Bar	8
The Actions Menu	9
Overview of all the Animals	12
The Supplier	12
Building Up Enclosures	14
6.0 GUI and Controls	14
The Character Sheet	16
The Animal Encyclopaedia	17
7.0 The Scenarios	18
Scenario 1 "All things start in small ways"	18
Scenario 2 "Broaden your horizons"	18
Scenario 3 "Cats and Little Tigers"	18
Scenario 4 "Dog Days"	19

"Horsey Business"	19	
Scenario 6 "The Circus Comes to Town"	19	
8.0 The Team	21	
Program and System Tips	22	
Epilepsy Warning	22	



# 1.0 Introduction

"My Pet Hotel", in cooperation with the Panini Publishing Co. ("Animals – Friends for Life"), enables you to make your wish come true and take care of six of your favourite house pets (horses, dogs, cats, rabbits, budgerigars and tortoises).

You alone are responsible for the wellbeing of these animals, entrusted to you by their owners, in your own carefully set up pet hotel. You can build up and decorate the pet hotel in a complete 3D world, as you wish, using exciting scenarios and different levels of difficulty, in order to to be able to provide the animals with a secure haven. You will find in the various character sheets, that each animal has its own short history and characteristics, together with information on its specific needs. There is also the possibility that, through the grateful thanks of happy pet owners, you may ultimately be rewarded by being named as "Best Pet Hotel in the World"!

# 2.0 Installation

Before installing, please close all non-relevant programs in use on your computer.

This also includes, for example, Anti-Virus programs, which could affect the installation.

- 1. Insert the original "My Pet Hotel" CD into your CD-ROM drive.
- 2. Click START on the Windows desktop.
- 3. Select RUN. Type the letter of your CD-ROM drive into the box, and then Eautorun.exe (for example D:\Eautorun.exe).
- 4. Alternatively, you can start the installation as follows:
- Double click the My Computer icon on your Windows desktop
- Double click the CD drive symbol
- Double click on the Setup.exe command, to begin the installation. The installation will create an entry in the program menu, under "My Pet Hotel".

To deinstall the program, select DEINSTALL from the "My Pet Hotel" program menu folder.

2

Up-to-date information on potential problems, or helpful tips (in respect of graphics cards, drivers, links, for instance), may be found in the "readme" data on the original CD.

# System requirements

#### Minimum Hardware requirements:

- PIII 1 GHz CPU
- 128 MB RAM
- ME/2000/XP,
- 32 MB graphics card
- DirectX9
- SB compatible soundcard
- keyboard, mouse
- CD-ROM drive
- 500MB free hard disk space.

#### **Recommended Hardware Requirements**

- 1,6 GHz CPU
- 256 MB RAM
- ME/2000/XP
- 64 MB graphics card
- DirectX9
- SB compatible soundcard
- keyboard, mouse
- CD-ROM drive
- 500MB free hard disk space.

#### **Optimal Hardware Requirements**

- >2 GHz CPU
- 512 MB RAM
- ME/2000/XP
- 128 MB graphics card
- DirectX9
- SB compatible soundcard
- keyboard, mouse
- CD-ROM drive
- 500MB free hard disk space.

**Note** The quality of reproduction and performance of the game program is highly dependable on the qualities of the graphics card used! Up-to-date graphics cards with ATI and NVIDIA chip sets are recommended.

# 3.0 Controls and Shortcut keys

eft mouseclick	Confirms a menu item, carries out an action, selects. If you try to carry out an action that is not possible, the cursor will be displayed with a "not possible" sign, like a "No Entry" traffic signal.
rrows Left/Right	Points the camera left or right
rrows Up/Down	To zoom in or out with the camera view
50	Pauses the game and calls up the Options menu
	This allows you to view the scenario description
2	To see the animals overview list
3	Takes you to the Suppliers
ŧ.	To display the building menu
oace Bar	Centers the screen on your game figure
eys number 2,4,6, and 8	Using keys number 2,4,6, and 8, as an
	alternative to the mouse, you can move around the grounds of the pet hotel.

# 4.0 Main Menu

New Game

S

This is where your new career as owner of your own pet hotel begins. Next, select the level of difficulty, which relates to the number of different animals to be cared for, and then select the Start scenario.

5

	Now you are ready to begin!
Load Game	Do you want to pick up again from a previ-
	ously started game? Choose from the previ-
	ously saved games and confirm.
Options	Here you can choose various settings for the
	game, such as graphics, sound and controls.
Leave Game	When you want to leave the game, just click
	here.

# 5.0 The Game

The principle of the game and the interaction with the animals is based on satisfying the needs of the animals in your care. The better you do this, the better the animals will feel, and consequently the happier their owners will be with your work.

The task for you in "My Pet Hotel" will be to carefully look after the animals at your pet hotel, to care for them, and provide a comfortable home for them in the absence of their owners.

In order to achieve this, you can invest money in improvements to your enclosures, your facilities and in such things as food and toys for the



animals. But be careful! If you spend too much money, you will soon have nothing left to pay the costs of running the hotel.

This does not necessarily have to mean the end of your venture, because the bank can offer you a generous loan, but you will not be able to make any new purchases if you create big losses. So please make sure you watch your spending carefully!

Keep in mind that your four-legged or feathered "guests" should always be properly fed and watered, that their enclosures should remain clean, and that they do not lack exercise, company or fun, so that their life is made as good as possible while they are in your care.

If an animal becomes ill, a vet will visit your pet hotel, and take care of the animal, by giving it an injection. You should also be aware, that if an animal becomes ill too often, the Animal Protection Society may notice, and in the worst case, they may arrange for the animal to be taken away from your care, which would certainly not show your pet hotel in a good light.

Each scenario will present you with a new challenge, and if you can show success with your running of the hotel, you will be responsible for more and more animals under your roof.

The game is played in rounds, that means, every day you play in "real time", will be considered as one round. The time animals spend at your hotel will be shown in days/rounds,

If you want to extend your enclosures, this action always needs a "building" round. That means you will only be able to admire and use your newly purchased or built enclosures in the following round.

When the animals settle down to sleep for the night, you will receive a short daily report at the end of the round.

Once you close this screen, then a new day (round) begins at the pet hotel.

So, let's not keep the animals waiting, there's a lot of work ahead of you in "My Pet Hotel". Set your mind to it and embark on the challenge of your life!

#### The Animal Types

In "My Pet Hotel", you will be able to take care of six of the most popular kinds of animals:

In the beginning, you can start with tortoises and rabbits; afterwards

you will experience budgerigars, pedigree cats, Golden Retriever dogs, and finally horses!

Each different type of animal has its very own special requirements, so you will have to take care of them all individually and ensure they are well looked after.

# The Needs Bar



According to the level of difficulty selected, there will be certain needs to observe for each of your animals.

Take a moment to check the actual condition of the animals - you can do this by placing the cursor on the animal, or you can also click on the Animal List, for a complete overview.

The display runs from green (good) through yellow (normal) up to red (bad), when a need

is not satisfactorily being met, for example if the animal has not been fed.

When you then give the animal some food, you will see how the bar moves back in the direction of zero per cent need (this is for no need or satisfied need).)

All needs are handled in this way, except for Health. The health rating gives you an interpretation of the overall wellbeing of an animal. Always make sure that the values do not stay in the red zone!



# Hunger

This is the animals' most important need; they must always have enough to eat. To fill up a feeding bowl, you have to collect a unit of food from the store, and then fill the bowl with it.

Note You can only always take one portion of food. Before you run out of provisions in your store, make a call on the Supplier.



Hygiene

Cleanliness is very important for the animals. This also involves making sure that the enclosures are regularly cleaned. To do this, just click on the cleaning bucket in any of the enclosures and select what degree of cleaning is needed.



Exercise

Exercise and movement is important for animals, so that they stay feeling fit.

Play with them, take them out around the grounds, or ensure that they have plenty of opportunity to run free and keep themselves occupied.



#### Animals usually feel much better when they can enjoy the company of others of the same species.

Playing together as well as with you helps to fulfill this need.

# Luxuries



The extent to which this need is covered in your pet hotel will depend on how much you equip the enclosures with luxury

#### items.

Make a visit to the Supplier and see what items he can offer you. Note: If you want to buy more luxury items for the enclosures, you first have to extend the corresponding enclosure.

# Health



The Health bar gives you an overview of the overall condition of an animal.

This value is made up from all the other values.

Always be careful to see that the condition of the animals does not fall into the red zone!

# **The Actions Menu**

In "My Pet Hotel", you interact with animals and objects by left clicking on the selected item, which revels the Actions menu.

This Actions menu will show you a list of the actions available.

There are different menus for each animal. The store, the feeding bowls and the cleaning bucket are also controlled from the Actions menu.



By placing the cursor on one of the menu points, you will see a dropdown list of sub-points.

Greyed-out action buttons cannot be used before the corresponding object has been purchased or enclosures built up.

#### List of the actions:



You should give the animals a treat sometimes, and spoil them. The cost for it will be directly debited to your bank account.



Whether leaping about, fetching sticks, or even training in the lunging ring, all possible actions for you to play with the animals are to be found here! Try it out!



Regularly stroke your animals, so that they grow to trust you, and settle in more quickly at the hotel. This also shows them attention and ensures they have company.



If you want a dog or cat to have a walk or a run, click on "Walks", and provide some exercise for them.



As soon as you are able to accept a horse at your pet hotel, it's time to put on your riding outfit and make a horseback tour of the grounds.



This allows you to close the menus.

Here is a list of "play" actions in "My Pet Hotel":



watch the tortoise



let the tortoise play with the bite ring





singing practice for the budgie



let the cat play with a stuffed animal



let the cat play with a ball of wool



let the dog fetch a stick



tell the dog to sit



tell the dog to bark



tell the dog to beg



brush the horse



lead the horse into the paddock



**Note** Once you have selected an action and activated it, you cannot cancel it until it has been fully completed.

If the action has not yet begun, and your game character is still on the way, you can however cancel the action, simply by clicking anywhere on the playing area.

10 My Pet Hotel

# **Overview of all the Animals**



In this overview, you see the total picture of all the animals in your hotel. Next select the kind of animal you want, by clicking on its symbol.

The tables show information on name, age, agreed collection date, and a summary of all the animal's values.

By clicking on an animal's name, you can call up the corresponding character sheet.

# **The Supplier**



At the Supplier's you can buy all sorts of goods.

You may also contact the Supplier using the computer in your office. The upper area allows you to choose particular items, such as food, toys, or luxury objects that you can buy for each of the different types of animal. When you have finished choosing, you can then check your purchases in the list displayed.

Once you confirm a purchase, the price shown will be automatically taken out of your bank account.

When you want to leave the Supplier, just click on the "End" symbol.

#### Food

There are three different qualities of food to choose from. Food quality is determined by the extent to which the food satisifies the hunger of an animal, that is, "Special Food" will fill up the animal more, and is a better quality than "Normal Food", but of course, it is therefore more expensive. In the "Quantity" column, using "Plus" and "Minus" signs, you can input the number of food untis that you want to buy. So that you can actually check what supplies you have in your store at the moment, this information is also shown.

Costs are calculated from the quantities ordered by you. In order to buy the food, click on "Buy" and it will be added to your store.

#### Toys

The Supplier also offers toys with which you can play with your animals. The assortment ranges from cuddly toys to more elaborate play items. Many of the playing actions with the animals can only be done if you first buy certain toys from the Supplier.

Choose your favourite animal and then have a look at what the Supplier can offer.

If you find something that interests you, and you want to buy it, confirm your choice by clicking on "Buy!"

#### Luxury Items

If you want to make the enclosures in your pet hotel nicer and give the animals more chances for playing or some treats, it is worth taking a look at the "Luxury Items" section at the Supplier.

After selecting your chosen kind of animal, you will see a list of available luxury items, which can be used to improve your enclosures.

There is one important thing to note: if you want to buy a luxury item, then the enclosures must have also previously been built up. If you want, for example, to buy Luxury Step 2, you must have built up the corresponding enclosure to Step 2 (see more information under Point "Building Up Enclosures").

Before you can buy Luxury Step 2, you must have first obtained Luxury Step 1.

If you have now decided to go ahead with some improvements, simply click "Buy!"

# **Building Up Enclosures**

If you are ready to build up one of your enclosures, to create a bigger outside area, you can do it through this menu.

First pick out the enclosure you have chosen. You will be shown the cost of building it up. The advantage of setting up an enclosure like this, is that the animals have a larger area in which to move around, and you can also then further improve things by obtaining more luxury items.

If you decide you want to go ahead to build up an enclosure, click on "Build Up!"

# 6.0 GUI and Controls

The following are the most important parts of your GUI (Graphic User Interface) in "My Pet Hotel". The elements of the graphic user interface:

04. 04. 12:43 832 € Szenarioziele OPTIONEN

In the upper area of the GUI display, you can see the current round (1), the time (2) and the current amount of money you have (3).

## The "Scenario Objective" button (4)

You can check the description of the scenario you are currently playing, at any time, here. If you cannot remember exactly what tasks you have to fulfill, simply check them here.

#### The "Options" button (5)

Left clicking here will offer you the following possibilities:

Continue Game
Save Game End Scenario

Options For adjustment of graphics, sound, or control options To save the current game situation This enables you to leave the actual scenario

This returns you to the current game Game

The Inventory (6)

This inventory shows you the food you have chosen, as well as your currently selected action.

It will also confirm which quality of food you are using at the moment. If you want to clean out an enclosure, for example, a symbol will be displayed, indicating what you are doing, for as long as it lasts.

**Note** You can only ever take one portion of food into the inventory at any one time! The field will remain empty, until you have made the food selection from the store.

#### The "Animal Overview" button (7)

All the animals in your pet hotel are listed here, arranged by type, with names nad a per cent value indication. This helps you to have a quick idea about all your actual "guests" and how they are doing.

#### The "Supplier" button (8)

The Supplier will be able to provide pretty much everything you need for your hotel: from food, to toys and luxuries for the enclosures. He has many items available.

#### The "Build Up Enclosures" button (9)

When you decide that you would like to build up one of your enclosures, click on this button. Select the enclosure you want, and confirm its construction to the level you have chosen. This process takes some time, and the enclosure will only be ready for use the next day.

# The Character Sheet

Every time a new customer appears in your office, wanting to leave their pet in your care, you will first receive a description of the animal in the form of a short poster, which is called the character sheet.

To view all the character sheets, just click on the notice board in your office. A click on the symbol for the animal type will then display the corresponding character sheets. Using the arrow keys, you can go through the list of animals.



The character sheet shows you various details on the animal, e.g. name, age, species, as well as basic and individual needs.

The needs indicate for you, how important the relevant values are for the animal. Individual needs relate to what the animals like, for instance, a particular kind of titbit, or a certain toy.

The animal's background and history will be explained to you through some short notes, and the customer will ask if you can accept their pet. You will also be able to see if you have free spaces available in any of the enclosures.

Below this, you will see how much money this animal will bring in to the hotel each day and how long it will be staying.

At the end of the character sheet, you will see the possibilities you have in deciding whether you can accept this animal.

"Yes" confirms that the animal will stay at the hotel for the length of time

stated. Saying "No" will turn the customer away and the animal will not be accepted.

**Note:** You cannot accept an animal, if you have no space in the enclosures; in this case, you must decline to the customer.

Animals which form an integral part of the scenario can only be confirmed.

They are important for you, to fulfill the objective of the scenario!

# The Animal Encyclopaedia

Der Urahn des heute bekannten	Die Helmat der Hunde liegt
Haushundes ist der Wolf, was man	ursprünglich auf der gesamten
bei einigen Hunderassen, wie z.B.	Nordhalbkugel unserer Erde,
dem Schäferhund, immer noch	die geografischen Wurzeln
sehr gut sehen kann. Schon selt	liegen aber in Asien und im
ca. 12.000 Jahren leben Mensch	Nahen Osten. Mittlerweile sind
und Hund zusammen, bereits auf	Hunde aber überall dort zu
steinzeitlichen Zeichnungen kann	finden, wo es Menschen gibt.
man Hunde und Menschen	
zusammen spielen sehen. Diese	Es gibt mehrere Hundert
Entwicklung verlief in unterschied-	verschledene Hunderassen,
lichen Teilen der Erde immer	von denen keine der anderen
anders ab, allerdings war ein	gleicht vom kleinen Chihuahua
grundlegender Bestandteil immer	bis zum irischen Wolfshund,
die Tatsache, dass beide einen	vom Nackthund bis zum
Nutzen davon hatten, so fielen	wuscheligen Chow-Chow.
für den Hund die Essensreste	Aufgrund der verschiedenen
des Menschen ab, der wiederum	Hunderassen kann das
genoss den Schutz durch die	Gewicht von 600g bis 120 kg
Anwesenheit des Hundes.	variieren.

If you want to know more about the animals in your pet hotel, take a look in the encyclopaedia!

To do this, click on the book which is on the desk in your office.

You will probably be able to obtain some useful tips on the care and treatment of your animals from this, or simply discover something interesting about your animal friends!

To turn a page, forwards or back, use the arrows.

# 7.0 The Scenarios

#### Scenario 1 "All things start in small ways"

**Starting Situation:** Now here you are, standing in front of the gates to your very own pet hotel! You always enjoyed helping out here, doing your best to look after the animals and take care of their needs.

Now this hotel has been left to you by your great uncle in his will, in which the wish is expressed that you should build up his old and small pet hotel into one of the best and most popular ones in the country. Your first challenge will be to see if you can take care of five tortoises and five rabbits, and then return them healthy and happy to their owners.

So, much success in the running of your own pet hotel. Face the task and devote yourself now to looking after the animals....

Get ready, your very first customer is about to arrive and bring their pet to stay with you! Good luck and much success!

Animals to take care of: Tortoises, rabbits

#### Scenario 2 "Broaden your horizons"

**Starting Situation:** After successfully completing your first task and showing you have what it takes to properly run a pet hotel, you must now apply yourself to expand the capacity and reputation of the operation.

You now have the possibility of erecting an aviary for budgerigars. Do your best to attract increased attention to interest the local newspaper in your activites, by building up all your enclosures because of the many guests you have thanks to the excellent care you have given to the creatures in your charge!

...ready now, the next customer and their pet are on the way. Animals to take care of: Tortoises, rabbits, budgerigars

#### Scenario 3 "Cats and Little Tigers"

**Starting Situation:** The reputation of your pet hotel has increased, thanks to local press coverage. Some friendly assistance from the Cat Appreciation Society has enabled you to secure the necessary funding to create a cattery. Prove that you can also live up to this challenge and show how

well you can look after the cats and little tigers. You have managed your previous tasks so well, that you should certainly be able to take on this new one and also succeed at it!

Animals to take care of: Tortoises, rabbits, budgerigars, cats

## Scenario 4 "Dog Days"

**Starting Situation:** Since you are so obviously good with animals, and have been featured in several newspapers and animal magazines, the doglovers are also very impressed. The mayor has just approved your application to build kennels. Demonstrate that you are capable of taking on additional responsibility, and further improve your reputation, by making sure that all animals entrusted to you are returned to their owners in top condition.

Animals to take care of: Tortoises, rabbits, budgerigars, cats, dogs

#### Scenario 5 "Horsey Business"

**Starting Situation:** By now, you have become so successful, that you have been reported on in even national specialist magazines and journals, and everyone speaks of your pet hotel with the highest praise.

There is soon going to be a riding tournament in the next town, combined with the annual horse market, and because of this many horse owners are looking for somewhere to stable their animals for a few days.

The organiser of this event has therefore asked you whether you could help them out and has already offered you financial help for the setting up of stalls for the horses.

Are you confident enough to take on this new task? Of course you are! After all this time, you have become a real professional at taking care of animals!

Animals to take care of: Tortoises, rabbits, budgerigars, cats, dogs, horses

#### Scenario 6 "The Circus Comes to Town"

**Starting Situation:** You have been approached by the director of a circus, which will be giving some performances in your town. He is worried,

18

because a bad storm has damaged many of his waggons, cages and boxes – to the extent that they are no longer suitable for the animals to stay in them.

He has a number of animals that he would like you to look after in the pet hotel: rabbits, budgerigars, dogs and horses.

Do your best with these animals! Remember, these are circus animals, which means they are very good at being trained and learning tricks.

Also, the horses need a lot of exercising and dressage training so they stay fit for the circus performances. When the circus director comes back to you two weeks later, all his animals can do new tricks, are completely healthy and in top condition.

Go ahead with this final task and show everyone that you are without doubt knowledgeable and talented enough to be viewed as the best pet hotel owner!

Animals to take care of: Tortoises, rabbits, budgerigars, cats, dogs, horses

# 8.0 The Team

**Independent Arts Software** 

Managing Director Holger Kuchling

Art Director Ersin Süpke

**Concept and Game Design** Sascha Hartmann Alexander "Barghest" Peters

**Programming** Andreas Timmermann Achim Koyen

**Graphics** Ersin Süpke Raschid Aboul-Nour Sven Zerneke Jens Kortboyer Michaela Hilbig

Animation Ersin Süpke Karlheinz Watermeier Raschid Aboul-Nour Sven Zerneke

Music and SFX Kai Walter

Handbuch Sascha Hartmann

Installation Philip Kutz



Panini Verlags GmbH Brand Rights © Panini Verlags GmbH www.panini.de

**Copyright:** ©2007 TREVA Entertainment GmbH

**Publishing:** TREVA Entertainment GmbH Hamburg - Germany www.treva-entertainment.com

#### **Program and System Tips**

- 1. Only switch in the real time shadow effect if your system has a powerful ATI or NVIDIA graphics card.
- 2. For older systems and/or slower graphics cards, screen resolution should be set at 800 x 600 (Options -> Graphics).
- 3. Some older graphics cards (e.g. GeForce2, GeForce 4MX, TNT 2), will not be able to display certain visual effects because of old hardware achitecture and/or missing pixel/vertex shaders.
- 4. If you experience problems, be sure to check your graphics card driver. You should always try to use the most updated version.

# **EPILEPSY WARNING**

Please read before using this video game or allowing your children to use it. Some people are susceptible to epileptic seizures or loss of consciousness when exposed to certain flashing lights or light patterns in everyday life. Such people may have a seizure while watching images or playing certain video games. This may happen even if the person has no medical history of epilepsy or has never had any epileptic seizures. If you or anyone in your family has ever had symptoms related to epilepsy (seizures or loss of consciousness) when exposed to flashing lights or patterns, consult your doctor prior to playing. We advise that parents should monitor the use of video games by their children. If you or your child experience any of the following symptoms: dizziness, blurred vision, eye or muscle twitches, loss of consciousness, disorientation, any involuntary movement or convulsion, while playing a video game, IMMEDIATELY discontinue use and consult your doctor (particularly since experience of any of these symptoms could lead to injury from falling down or striking nearby objects). Parents should ask their children about the above symptoms - children and teenagers may be more likely than adults to experience these seizures.

# PRECAUTIONS TO TAKE DURING USE

- Do not stand too close to the screen. Sit a good distance away from the monitor, as far away as the length of the cable allows.
- Preferably play the video game on a small screen.

- Avoid playing if you are tired or have not had much sleep.
- Make sure that the room in which you are playing is well lit.
- Rest for at least 10 to 15 minutes per hour while playing a video game.

# WARNING: AVOID DAMAGE TO YOUR TELEVISION

Do not use with certain television screens and monitors. Some televisions, especially front- or rearprojection types and plasma screens, can be damaged if any video games are played on them. Static images or pictures presented during the normal course of playing a game (or from putting the game on hold or pausing) may cause permanent picture-tube damage, and may "burn in" to the screen, causing a permanent shadow of the static image to appear at all times, even when the games are not being played. Always consult your television screen or monitor manual or otherwise the manufacturer to check if video games can be played safely.

#### The PEGI age rating system:

Age Rating categories: Les catégories de tranche d'âge: Content Descriptors: Descripton



du contenu:

The 'Online' logo indicates that a game allows the player to have access to online game play against other players.

Le logo « Online » indique qu'un titre vous permet de jouer avec d'autres personnes en ligne.

For further information about the Pan European Game Information (PEGI) rating system please visit:

Pour de plus amples informations concernant l'évaluation du système d'information de jeu Pan Européen (PEGI), vous pouvez consulter:

Para obtener más información sobre el sistema de calificación de juegos (PEGI), por favor visite:

Per ulteriori informazioni sul sistema europeo di valutazione delle informazioni del gioco (PEGI) vi preghiamo di visitare:

Für weitere Informationen über das europäische Spiel-Informationen Bewertungs-System (PEGI) besuchen Sie bitte:

http://www.pegi.info

